
 

 
South Haven City Hall is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary reasonable auxiliary aids 
and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed 
materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to 
the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the City Clerk by writing or 
calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0700. 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, November 7, 2013 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 

 
 City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4. Approval of Minutes – October 3, 2013 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. New Business  

 
A. PUBLIC HEARING – Special Use Permit, BMX Track 

 
The City of South Haven requests approval to develop a BMX Pump Track at 1026 E. Wells 
Street. Public recreation facilities are permitted in this R-1B zone with a special use permit from 
the planning commission. 

 
B. Discussion of Draft Wind Turbine Generator Regulations (2010) 
 
C. Discussion of B-3 Zoning District 

. 
7. Old Business 

 
A. None 

 
8.  Commissioner Comments 
 
9. Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 1 of 104



 

1 

 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, October 3, 2013 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 

 
 City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
1. Call to Order by Paull at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present: Frost, Heinig, Peterson, Smith, Wall, Webb 
Absent:  Miles  
 
Motion by Heinig, second by Wall to excuse Miles.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Smith, second by Heinig to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – September 5, 2013 
 

Motion by Wall, second by Smith to approve the September 5, 2013 regular Meeting 
Minutes as written.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
None at this time. 

 
6. New Business  

 
A. PUBLIC HEARING – Special Use Permit Request 

1068 Monroe Blvd. 
 
Vlietstra Brothers Pools, Inc., representing John and Rita Sexton of 1068 Monroe 
Blvd, South Haven, MI, requests a special use permit to construct an in ground 
swimming pool at the above address on Monroe Boulevard. Swimming pools on 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 2 of 104



October 3, 2013 
Planning Commission Minutes 
DRAFT 

 2 

waterfront properties require a special use permit according to zoning ordinance 
section 1725-2d. 
 
Anderson reviewed the request, noting that she walked the site, observed a solidly built 
seawall on a bluff that is well vegetated. Anderson informed that she sent the request to 
the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) which had no problem with the request. 
In light of concerns offered by the neighbors in three (3) letters and the location of pool, 
Anderson suggested the board might want to make an approval contingent on an 
engineering study by the applicant.  
 
Motion by Wall, second by Heinig to open the public hearing.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Paull asked if there was anyone in the audience who wanted to speak to this issue. 
Seeing none, Paull requested a motion to close the public hearing. 
 
Wall stated that she received a phone call from a neighbor who is in Europe and could 
not be at this meeting. The neighbor had concerns regarding water runoff and because 
of that Wall agrees with having an engineer look at it. 
 
Motion by Smith, Second by Wall to close the public hearing. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

B. Discussion and Recommendation: Proposed Variance 
 
Paull pointed out that an engineering study could be included in the motion if the pool 
request is approved. 
 
Smith questioned whether concerns about the fence placement and easement have 
been addressed and whether it is standard practice to require an engineering study. 
Anderson explained she always sends such requests to the Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ). Smith questioned whether a house would be worse than a 
pool in regards to issues with the bluff. Anderson noted that with a house, the city 
required sealed drawings by an engineer or architect. Regarding the fence placement 
concern of the neighbors, Anderson stated that the city acts in good faith with the 
application and does not require surveys; if there is a fence or easement issue, 
neighbors have to settle that as a civil matter.  
 
Peterson went to the property yesterday and noted that the fence did not seem to be a 
problem; he feels that the applicant has addressed the run off problems and agrees that 
an engineering study would be good.  
 
Wall asked about how to prevent overflow. Anderson said it is violation of the state law 
to allow run off from one property to another; however, it is the property owner’s 
responsibility to be sure that drainage does not run onto a neighbor’s property.  
 
Ron Vlietstra: Owner, Vlietstra Brothers Pool Company. Stated that the company 
has been in business for over forty (40) years and that he has been an owner for twenty-
one (21) years. Vlietstra Brothers has installed many pools along the waters’ edge from 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 3 of 104



October 3, 2013 
Planning Commission Minutes 
DRAFT 

 3 

New Buffalo north including ten (10) in South Haven and has never had an issue. 
Vlietstra noted that this area is fortunate in that there is quite a rigid clay bank along the 
lakeshore all the way up to Glenn which runs on an angle and stabilizes that area quite 
well. Vlietstra pointed out that he put a pool in the Pinnacles which is seventy-five (75) 
feet up and twenty-five (25) feet in from the bluff in the High Banks.  
 
Regarding this application, Vlietstra stated that he contacted the Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ), which issued him a five (5) page questionnaire to fill out. 
Of that, only one question applied to this pool, and that required him to go to the Van 
Buren County Drain Commission, which is the State of Michigan designated agency for 
the “Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control” permit office. That office reviewed the 
request and issued a permit. Vlietstra noted that he is working in conjunction with 
DeBest on this project and commended the quality of DeBest’s work. 
 
Vlietstra commented that “except for the Planning Commission granting me a Special 
Use Permit so I can pull a Building Permit, we are ready to go.”  
 
Vlietstra also commented on the water drainage issue, noting that when the Sextons 
bought the property they were concerned with water draining toward the bank so that 
has already been alleviated and the goal for Vlietstra Pools is to contain all drainage 
within the property. Vlietstra’s plans are to do the same thing he did on two (2) pools his 
firm installed on Monroe Boulevard recently; he put in boring drains that are extremely 
effective.  
 
Paull reminded that one of the concerns is the runoff onto neighbor’s property. Vlietstra 
explained that the pool will be a completely enclosed self-contained system and all water 
will be held on the property and will not drain on anyone else’s property.  
 
Webb requested clarification regarding the questionnaire from the Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ). Anderson explained that the questionnaire led the 
applicant to the Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control permit from the Van Buren 
County Drain Commission.  
 
Vlietstra added that his firm has never had a violation or citation. 
 
Smith stated that he is familiar with some of the pools Vlietstra mentioned, that he can 
confirm the quality of DeBest’s work and questioned whether an engineer brought in to 
study the proposed plan will know more than Vlietstra Brothers have with their 
experience up and down the lakeshore. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Wall to approve the special use permit to construct an in 
ground swimming pool at 1068 Monroe Boulevard.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

C. Discussion of B-3 Zoning District Regulations 
 

Paull explained that the B-3 Zoning District was created a decade or so ago, based on a 
former ordinance’s marina district and pieces of a zoning code adopted from another 
community, which he noted has worked reasonably well up until recently. Currently 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 4 of 104



October 3, 2013 
Planning Commission Minutes 
DRAFT 

 4 

nearly all the property left to be developed in the B-3 zone does not fit into the B-3 
category. 
 
Anderson said she has had requests for single family homes in the B-3 Zoning District 
for properties that are not suitable for much except a single family home. B-3 allows 
Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) and some businesses such as restaurants. In 
talking to others around the city, trying to determine why the zone restricts the 
construction of single family home, Anderson stated that she has never been able to find 
out. Anderson reviewed Planning Commission minutes from the time but never found 
reference to a discussion on why the zone was structured as it is.  
 
Anderson’s recommendation is for the Commission to consider amending the zoning 
ordinance to allow single family homes in the B-3 district; people own lots in that zone 
and cannot do much with them. 
 
Another issue that Anderson pointed out is the area in the B-3 zone that should be 
looked at is where Old Harbor Village/Inn is located along Williams Street. Anderson 
stated that here has been discussion since she has been employed by the city of making 
that area part of the Central Business District (CBD). Strong features that point to that 
change are that Old Harbor Village/Inn has the same characteristics as the CBD, being 
in the CBD gives the area more options for uses and the CBD does not have the same 
parking requirements as the B-3 zone. B-3 requires that a business provide a certain 
number of parking spaces on the same property and that cannot happen in that location.  
 
Anderson talked to the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Director, Deb 
Davidson, to see if she had any issues with such a zoning change and Davidson thinks it 
is a good idea. Now that the city is more developed, there may be some other changes 
that need to be made to the text of the ordinance in the section about the B-3 zone, that 
were not addressed at the time it was implemented. 
 
Anderson would like to receive the Planning Commission’s permission to look at some of 
these issues; put together a subcommittee; drive and walk the area; look at permits that 
have been issued in the area and report back to the Commission.  
 
Smith asked for clarification that Anderson is only asking to add something, not to 
change the Planned Unit Development (PUD) requirements or remove any allowed uses 
from the B-3 Zone. Anderson responded that she has no problem with what is allowed 
but with what is not allowed; adding single family residences as a permitted use is a 
simple adjustment and would be a way to allow a use for the owners of some of those 
lots in the B-3 zone.  
 
Peterson asked for an example of one of those lots in the B-3 zone that could be used 
for a single family home if the use was added to the ordinance. Anderson responded, 
“Three Pelicans,” and added that she has had inquiries about that property, which 
cannot accommodate a business use due to the parking requirement, but could be a 
good location for a single family home. 
 
Paull said if the commissioners have consensus, he will have Anderson explore this and 
report back to the commission. All members recommended staff begin the study. 
 
. 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 5 of 104



October 3, 2013 
Planning Commission Minutes 
DRAFT 

 5 

7. Old Business 
 
A. Request Concerning Overlay Zoning 

 
Paull noted that this item is regarding the overlay zoning in a written communication we 
received prior to the public comment at the September 5, 2013 regular planning 
commission meeting requesting one piece of property be removed from the overlay zone.  
 
Anderson noted that the resident feels that this property, zoned B-1, should not remain in 
the overlay zone because inclusion might encourage expansion of the use in the future.  
Anderson feels this is not a good precedent to set, once one property is removed from 
the overlay zone, other businesses may want that use that as a way to opt out.   
 
As noted in the staff report, Anderson pointed out that this request is being brought to the 
commission due to staff omission; she really wanted to have the proposed Overlay 
Zoning to City Council by now.  
 
Heinig commented that the reasons given to take it out are the very reasons it should not 
be taken out.  
 
By consensus, the board determined that no property should be taken out of the 
proposed overlay zone. 

 
8.  Commissioner Comments 
 

There were none. 
 
9. Adjourn 
 

Motion by Wall, second by Smith to adjourn at 7:29 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 6 of 104



 

Planning commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6A 

Special Use Request 
Public BMX Pump Track 

 
 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information:  
 
The City of South Haven requests approval to develop a BMX Pump Track at 1026 E. Wells 
Street. Public recreation facilities are permitted in this R-1B zone with a special use permit from 
the planning commission. 
 
The facility will be located on the same property as the Public Safety Complex and will be 
accessed from Wells Street. The proposed track will be 1,045 feet in length and cover 
approximately 55,780 sq. ft. (1.28 acres) of the 7.8 acres available at the Complex property. 
 
This project was a priority item for the city council at their 2013-2014 goal setting session. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff has no problem with the planning commission approval of this project but does have some 
issues which need to be clarified or added to the site plan. These issues are listed at the end of 
the Case Summary. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Competed application  
Special Use Standards narrative 
Location map 
Aerial photo 
Site plan 
Rendering looking east 
Rendering looking west 
Case summary 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 7 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 8 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 9 of 104



City of South Haven 

Proposed Pump Track 

Special Use Permit Application General Standards Narrative: 

a) The special land use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. 

 

Response: The adjacent land uses on the south side of E. Wells Street include The Public Safety 

Building to the southeast, a residential property to the east and a cemetery to the west.  The 

land uses on the north side of E. Wells Street include a new Skate Park at the northeast corner 

of N. Bailey Avenue and E. Wells Street. Just east of the skate park is a County Office Building. 

Directly across the street from this proposed use is a Moose Lodge and directly across the street 

from the residential property is a seasonal campground facility. The use of this facility for 

recreational use is harmonious with the character of the adjacent property and surrounding 

area. The Kal-Haven Trailhead and associated parking lot is located approximately 550 feet to 

the northwest of the site. 

 

b) The special land use shall not change the essential character of the surrounding area. 

 

Response: The existing character of the surrounding area is similar to the proposed use. The 

Skate Park, Public Safety Building and the Cemetery are all Publicly Owned Facilities. And the use 

for the remaining properties excluding the one residential parcel is municipal and public in 

character. 

 

c) The special land use shall not be hazardous to the adjacent property, property values, or involve 

used, activities, processes, materials or equipment which will be detrimental to the health, 

safety or welfare of persons or property through the excessive production of traffic, noise, 

smoke, fumes, ground vibration, water runoff, odors, light, glare or other nuisance. 

 

Response: The facility will be maintained by the Parks Department and follow the same 

requirements as set forth for the Skate Park in terms of hours of operation, noise ordinance 

requirements, etc. The number of users anticipated to drive to the site is minimal since it is 

expected that many of the users will ride their bike to the site so there should not be any 

increase in traffic. All grades have been designed to retain the water from rainfall on site with no 

additional runoff to adjacent lands. The projected use will enhance the health safety and 

welfare of the user by providing an opportunity for recreation. The site will not contain 

additional lighting and the hard packed clay will be maintained to prevent dust, odors or other 

nuisance. 

 

 

 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 10 of 104



d) The special land use shall not place demands on public services and facilities in excess of current 

capacity unless planned improvements have already been scheduled for completion.  

 

Response: The site is currently being utilized as a construction stockpiling area for the Public 

Safety Facility expansion project. The condition of the site will be improved by the addition of 

the new landscaping, lawn seeding and other improvements as shown on the project plans. 

Since the parcel is currently owned and operated by the City of South Haven, the projected 

maintenance for the track will be less than or equal to if the site was entirely in a lawn surface 

which would require considerable mowing and maintenance and so should therefore not place 

demands on public services and facilities in excess of current capacity. The proximity to the 

Police Department also lessens any burden and demand upon the department. 

 

e) The special land use is consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Response: The proposed use of this site for Recreational Facilities is consistent with the intent of 

the current Comprehensive Plan. 

 

f) The special land use shall meet the site plan review requirements of Article IV.  

 

Response: The size of the parcel shall meet and maintain the R-1B typical larger lot width and 

Section 401, #4, Use Regulation per Article IV. 

 

g) The special land use shall conform with all applicable state and federal requirements for that 

use. 

 

Response: The land use will conform with all state and federal requirements for that use. 

 

h) The special land use shall conform with all standards in this Ordinance and other applicable City 

Ordinances, including but not limited to parking (see Article XVIII), signs (see Article XX), and 

standards particular to the special land use found in the District provisions, Schedule of 

Regulations, or elsewhere. 

 

Response: The special land use shall conform with all standards in this Ordinance and other 

applicable City Ordinances as the facility will be owned and operated by the City of South Haven. 

The required parking spaces have been established based on the user type with the majority of 

users anticipated to ride to the facility. Adequate additional parking for those that choose to 

drive and haul their bike is provided per the provided site plan. 

 

 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 11 of 104



 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 12 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 13 of 104



BENCHMARK #2

SET "X" ON CONC.
LIGHT POLE BASE

ELEV. = 642.41 (NAVD88)

BENCHMARK #3

SET MAG. NAIL IN POWER
POLE W/DROP & LIGHT

ELEV. = 630.66 (NAVD88)

EAST WELLS STREET

CURB
CUT

CONC.
BITUMINOUS
DRIVEWAY

BITUMINOUS
DRIVE

CONC.
DRIVE

BITUMINOUS
DRIVE

BITUMINOUS
DRIVE

BITUMINOUS
DRIVE

CONC.
DRIVE

CONC.
DRIVE

BITUMINOUS
DRIVE

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

WOODED
AREA

WOODED
AREA

WOODED
AREA

BITUMINOUS
PAVEMENT

BITUMINOUS
PAVEMENT

BITUMINOUS
PAVEMENT

LP TANK

BLDG.

BLDG.

FIRE HOSE
CONNECTION

POINT

FIN. FLOOR
EL. = 641.34

FIN. FLOOR
EL. = 640.79

FIN. FLOOR
EL. = 640.30

W/LIGHT
ALSO

PRO
PO

SED W
A

TER M
A

IN
 PER C

ITY O
F SO

UTH HA
VEN

APPROXIMATE BOUNDARY LINE (TYP.)

S. R.O.W. LINE 

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE:

SHEET NO.

ACI JOB #

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

PM REVIEW:

SEAL:

SIGNATURE:

SCALE:

HORZ:

VERT:

SH
EE

T 
TIT

LE
:

of
NO. REVISION DESCRIPTION: BY: DATE:

HARD COPY IS INTENDED TO
BE 24" X 36" WHEN PLOTTED.
SCALE(S) INDICATED AND

GRAPHIC QUALITY MAY NOT
BE ACCURATE FOR ANY

OTHER SIZES

QA/QC REVIEW:

DATE:

95
 W

es
t M

ai
n 

St
re

et
Be

nt
on

 H
ar

bo
r, 

M
I. 

49
02

3
T 

26
9.

92
7.

22
95

F 
26

9.
92

7.
10

17
M

an
ist

ee
, M

I
So

ut
h 

Ha
ve

n,
 M

I
So

ut
h 

Be
nd

, I
N

Fo
rt 

W
ay

ne
, I

N

C
on

fid
en

ce
 B

y 
D

es
ig

n

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
La

nd
 S

ur
ve

yi
ng

M
ar

in
a/

W
at

er
fro

nt
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

nn
in

g
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 2
01

2 
- A

BO
N

M
A

RC
HE

 C
O

N
SU

LT
A

N
TS

, I
N

C
.

C
ITY

 O
F 

SO
UT

H 
HA

VE
N

SO
UT

H 
HA

VE
N

, M
IC

HI
G

A
N

PU
M

P 
TR

A
C

K 
SI

TE
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

 L
A

YO
UT

DJL/KB

KB

SEPT 2013

1"=20'
N/A

13-0515

1 1

5 - 1.0' HIGH ROLLERS

4 - 1.5' HIGH ROLLERS

BANKED CURVE

BANKED CURVE

4 - 2' ROLLERS

2 - 1.5' ROLLERS

BANKED CURVE

15'
1:10

1:10

3 - 2' ROLLERS

30'

15'

15'

ELEVATED START 3 ' HIGH
ELEVATION = 638.00

BEGIN PEDAL

PROPOSED
ADDITIONAL
PARKING
(4 SPACES)

15'

10'

10'

6 - 1.5' HIGH ROLLERS

3- 1.0' HIGH ROLLERS

15'

15'

15'

15'

15'

10'

10'

10'

10'

10'

15'

5 - 1' HIGH ROLLERS

20'

20'

20'

20'

15'

3 - 1' HIGH ROLLERS

3 - 1' ROLLERS
10'

10'

10'

20'

20'

20'

15'
15'

3 - 1.5' ROLLERS

15'
20'

20' 20'

20'

10'

10'

PROPOSED
HMA PATH
10' WIDE

RE-ENTRY TO
ADVANCED TRACK

EXIT FOR
NOVICE TRACK

NOVICE
PUMP TRACK

ADVANCED
PUMP TRACK

NEW 4' HIGH CHAIN LINK FENCE
ALONG PERIMETER

NEW 4' HIGH CHAIN LINK FENCE
ALONG EDGE OF DRIVE

NEW 10' WIDE
MAINTENANCE GATE

NEW SHADE TREE (TYP.)EXISTING SHADE TREE (TYP.)

NEW ORNAMENAL TREE (TYP.)

10'

10'

PEDAL AREA

PEDAL AREA

RETENTION
AREA

INV = 624.75

INV =
625

RETENTION
AREA

E:
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\E
N

G
\_

20
13

\1
3-

05
15

 S
H

 P
U

M
P 

TR
A

C
K

\d
w

g\
13

-0
51

5 
B

S.
dw

g,
 2

4x
36

, 9
/2

6/
20

13
 1

1:
25

:3
9 

A
M

, k
bu

rc
za

k,
 1

:1

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 14 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 15 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 16 of 104



GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Case Number ........................ 2013-0021-SU 
 
Date of Plan Commission ...... 11.07.2013 
 
Applicant ............................... City of South Haven  
 
Request ................................ A special use permit to construct a public pump track (BMX track) 

per zoning ordinance section 401-4.  
 
Location ................................ 1026 E. Wells Street 
 
Parcel Number ...................... 80-53-870-016-00 
 
Size ....................................... 55,780 sq. ft. or 1.28 acres (the entire property is 7.8 acres) 
 
Street Frontage ..................... 315 feet 
 
Current Zoning ...................... R1-B Single family Residential  
 
Proposed Zoning ................... No change  
 
Contiguous Zoning ................ North: B-3 District (Other side of Wells Street) 
 South: R-1B District  
 East: R-1B  District 
 West: R-1B District 
 
Current Land Use .................. Vacant 
 
Contiguous Land Uses .......... North: Moose Lodge  
 South: Public Safety Buildings (City owned) 

 East: Residential and Blue Star Highway 
 West: Cemetery 
 
Comp Plan Designation ........ Public Facility 
 

 

CHARACTER OF THE AREA 
The subject property is in an area of publically owned land. The Kal-Haven Trail, city cemetery, 
County Courthouse, skate park and police station are all located in the general area. The 
character of the area is consistant with the current zoning and future land use classification in its 
public facility use.  

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
The City of South Haven is proposing to develop the northern portion of the parcel into a public 
pump track. The track will be 1,045 feet in length and will include both advanced and novice 
areas. 
 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 17 of 104



  2013-0021 
 

 2 

PUBLIC RESPONSE 
N/A 
 

EVALUATION 
The following provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are followed by a statement representing the 
status of the subject property as it relates to that provision. 
 

Section 400.  R-1B Single Family Residential 

 
The R-1B District is designed to provide a location for single family homes on slightly larger lots 
than permitted in the R-1A zone. The intent is to preserve the character of the residential 
neighborhoods while allowing compatible uses when in accord with the goals and objectives of 

the master plan for the city of south haven. 

 

Section  401.  Use Regulations 

 
Land, buildings or structures in this zoning district may be used for the following purposes only, 
subject to the review and approval of a site plan by the planning commission (excerpt):   
 
4. Publicly owned and operated libraries, parks, recreational facilities, and municipal 

parking lots by special use permit. 
 
Section 1510.25.  (OUTDOOR) PUBLIC RECREATION 
 

1. Locational requirements - Private noncommercial recreation areas, institutional, 
community or municipal recreation centers, nonprofit swimming pool clubs and other 
public recreational facilities that are largely outdoors, such as parks and playgrounds are 
permitted in the R-1, RM-1, B-2, B-3, and B-4 Districts. They shall have direct access to 
a public street. 
A. The proposed site for any of the uses permitted herein which would attract 

persons from, or are intended to serve, areas beyond the immediate 
neighborhood shall have at least one (1) property line abutting a major 
thoroughfare as designed on the street and highway classification and the site 
shall be so planned as to provide all access in accordance with Section 1716. 

 
The proposed track is located in the R-1 zone and will have access from Wells Street 
which is a major street in the city. 

 

2. Site requirements - The site shall be at least twenty thousand (20,000) square feet in 
size.  
A. Front, side and rear yards shall be at least twenty (20) feet wide, and shall be 

landscaped in trees shrubs and grass. All such landscaping shall be maintained 
in a healthy condition. There shall be no parking or structures permitted in these 
yards, except required entrance drives and those walls used to obscure the use 
from abutting residential districts. 

B. Off-street parking shall be provided so as to accommodate not less than one-half 
(1/2) of the number of the families and/or individual members. The planning 
commission may modify the off-street parking requirements in those instances 
wherein it is specifically determined that the users will originate from the 
immediately adjacent areas, and will therefore be pedestrian. Prior to the 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 18 of 104



  2013-0021 
 

 3 

issuance of a building permit, bylaws of the organization (if applicable) shall be 
provided in order to establish the membership involved for computing the off-
street parking requirements. In those cases wherein the proposed use or 
organization does not have bylaws or formal membership, the off-street parking 
requirement shall be determined by the planning commission on the basis of 
estimated peak usage. 

 
The yards appear to be at least 20 feet setback and trees are proposed around the track 
with the heaviest screening along Wells Street. There is also security fencing provided 
around the track.  
 
According to the zoning ordinance (Sec. 1800,12-b [14]), the parking for outdoor 
municipal recreation areas shall be determined by the city parks director. Staff has 
contacted Brandy Gildea, parks director, for her opinion of the proposed number of 
additional spaces. She has responded that the parking as proposed is adequate. 
 

3. Performance standards 
 a. Facilities shall provide off-street parking and passenger loading areas sufficient 

to meet the needs of those using the facility which shall be located at least 
twenty-five (25) feet from residential lot lines.  

 b. Sites shall be periodically cleared of debris so that litter does not accumulate on 
adjacent properties. 

 c. Not more than thirty-five (35) % of the land area shall be covered by recreational 
structures. 

 d. Screening shall be provided adjacent to residential districts or uses in 
accordance with the requirements of sections 1709 and 1714. 

 e. All buildings shall be of a residential character and exterior materials are to be 
primarily wood or brick. 

 f. All parking areas shall be paved. 
 g. Facilities using lighting adjoining a residentially zoned property shall deflect 

lighting away from these areas. 
 h. Excessive dust, noise, traffic, and trespassing shall not be inflicted on adjacent 

properties.  
i. All sports fields shall be a minimum of one hundred (100) feet from any lot line 

and two hundred (200) feet from any dwelling. 
 
The site plan complies with all zoning ordinance requirements but staff does have a few 
comments. Staff would like to see trash containers on the site to keep the area neat and 
to keep debris from blowing to adjacent properties. The plan does not identify if parking 
spaces will be paved as required. Any exterior lighting shall be in compliance with zoning 
ordinance/night sky requirements.  
 
Although the residential dwelling is over 700 feet from the proposed track and the track 
is 90 feet from the residential property line, zoning ordinance section 1709-1 a-requires 
screening between a nonresidential use and a residential use, regardless of zoning 
district. Staff recommends planting some additional trees between the access drive and 
the neighboring property line. 

 

Article XV (Section 1502, Basis of Determination): 

 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 19 of 104



  2013-0021 
 

 4 

1. General standards - the planning commission shall review the particular circumstances 
of the special use permit application under consideration in terms of the following 
standards and shall approve a special use permit application only upon a finding of 
compliance with each of the following standards, as well as applicable standards 
established elsewhere in this ordinance:   
A. The special land use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in 

a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the 
surrounding area. 

B. The special land use shall not change the essential character of the surrounding 
area.   

C. The special land use shall not be hazardous to the adjacent property, property 
values, or involve uses, activities, processes, materials or equipment which will 
be detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons or property through the 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, ground vibration, water 
runoff, odors, light, glare or other nuisance. 

D. The special land use shall not place demands on public services and facilities in 
excess of current capacity unless planned improvements have already been 
scheduled for completion. 

E. The special land use is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan. 
F. The special land use shall meet the site plan review requirements of Article IV. 
G. The special land use shall conform to all applicable state and federal 

requirements for that use. 
H. The special land use shall conform with all standards in this ordinance and other 

applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to parking (see Article XVIII), 
signs (see Article XX), and standards particular to the special land use found in 
the district provisions, schedule of regulations, or elsewhere. 

 
This special land use request will have minimal impact on the surrounding area. The request 
does not place increased demands on public services or facilities. The standards either are met 
or will be with the addition of staff condition recommendations, below. 
 
The current adopted City Master Plan, Chapter 6, Goals, Objectives and Policies states that the 
Planning Commission will support efforts to satisfy the need for community wide recreational 
facilities.  The Plan also includes the goal to strengthen the diversity of recreational 
opportunities and to offer seasonal opportunities for individuals other than boaters.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
While staff has no reluctance in the approval of the special use request, the Planning 
Commission needs to review the case summary and determine if this application for a special 
use permit meets the intent of the City in these regards, and consider the following conditions in 
the event that they find that it does: 
 

1. Setback distances need to be shown on the plan; 
2. At least one (1) trash container should be located on the site; 
3. Bike racks should be available;  
4. Additional trees should be planted between the access drive and the neighboring 

property line; 
5. Some spectator/resting seating should be made available; 
6. A detail of any exterior lighting needs to be provided; 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 20 of 104



  2013-0021 
 

 5 

7. Any proposed signage will need a permit and shall comply with ordinance requirements 
for institutional signs in residential zones, and  

8. Storm sewer and drainage information needs to be shown on the plan. 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 21 of 104



Planning commission 
Staff Report 

October 3, 2013 

Planning commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6B 

Draft Wind Turbine Generator Ordinance 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information:  
 
For many months, beginning in 2009, the city’s planning commission actively worked to review 
and consider the possible use of wind turbines within the City of South Haven. Attached are 
meeting minutes which provide detailed information on the planning commission’s work and 
recommendations for a possible amendment to the city’s zoning ordinance, an amendment 
which if approved will allow for the possible use of wind turbines within the City of South Haven. 
The ordinance recommended by the city’s Planning commission establishes two categories of 
wind turbines, requires a special use permit for all wind turbines, and places height restrictions 
on the proposed units. 
 
At the May 3, 2010 meeting of the city council, the council discussed the draft ordinance, which 
if approved would amend Article XVII, Section 1732, and establish Article XVII, Section 1742 
and Article XV, Section 1510.35, and further establish regulations for wind energy turbines, with 
provisions for special use permit requests, of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance. The city 
council had some concerns with the draft ordinance and sent it back to the planning commission 
for further study. In September of that year, a joint workshop was held with the planning 
commission and city council to discuss the few remaining points of disagreement. The 
discussion at the meeting focused on: 
 
1. Limit all turbine heights to 40’ in the areas west of Blue Star Hwy. 
2. Allow small turbines to be mounted atop commercial/industrial facility roofs in the areas east 
of Blue Star Hwy. 
3. Remove 200’ height limitation, and revise the fall zone provision to a one to one ratio, in the 
areas east of Blue Star Hwy. 
 
At the November 4th meeting of the planning commission, the commission discussed the 
proposed modifications, as offered by the city council, and after considering the potential 
impacts of the modifications, the Planning commission voted to maintain the originally 
suggested language. Most specifically, the city council desire to allow wind generators to reach 
400 feet on the east side of the interstate and the planning commission’s belief that no 
generators of the height should be allowed within the city limits. 
 
The draft ordinance was sent back to city council late in 2010 but no action was taken. The 
planning commission has now been asked to once again review the ordinance and make a 
recommendation to city council.  Since so much time has elapsed and the majority of current 
planning commissioners were not seated in 2009 and 2010, staff has included minutes of 
meetings as well as the latest draft text as it was edited and presented to council.  
  

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 22 of 104



Planning commission 
Staff Report 

October 3, 2013 

Recommendation:  
 
Review the materials enclosed and be prepared to discuss this at the November 7 meeting. The 
planning commission will need to make a new recommendation to the city council (only because 
of the time lapse) and forward with a final draft text. This need not happen in one meeting but 
staff would like to complete this project in a timely manner. 
 
If you think of other materials you would like to see in relation to this matter, please let staff 
know.  
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Chronology of Draft Wind Turbine generator Ordinance with Attachments: 

A - Planning commission Minutes, August 9, 2009 to April 1, 2010 
B - Staff Transmittal to City council, May 3, 2010 
C - Planning commission Minutes, July 1, 2010 
D - Staff Transmittal to City council, August 2, 2010 
      (With Draft Text and Height Maximum Map Attached) 
E - Joint Workshop Minutes, Planning commission and City council. September 13, 2010 
F - Planning commission Minutes, November 4, 2010 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 23 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 24 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 25 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 26 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 27 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 28 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 29 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 30 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 31 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 32 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 33 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 34 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 35 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 36 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 37 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 38 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 39 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 40 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 41 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 42 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 43 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 44 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 45 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 46 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 47 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 48 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 49 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 50 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 51 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 52 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 53 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 54 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 55 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 56 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 57 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 58 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 59 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 60 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 61 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 62 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 63 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 64 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 65 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 66 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 67 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 68 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 69 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 70 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 71 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 72 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 73 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 74 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 75 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 76 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 77 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 78 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 79 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 80 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 81 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 82 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 83 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 84 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 85 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 86 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 87 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 88 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 89 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 90 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 91 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 92 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 93 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 94 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 95 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 96 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 97 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 98 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 99 of 104



§̈¦196

§̈¦196

§̈¦196

£¤31
43

140

A-2

A-2

§̈¦196

£¤31

388

S 
I 1

96
N 

I 1
96

73
rd

 S
t

CR
 68

9

Phoenix  S t

M- 43 Hwy

Ka
lam

az
oo

 S
t

71
 1

/2
 S

t

12 th  Av e

Ce
nt

er
 S

t

Mo
nr

oe
 B

lv d M-
14

0 
Hw

y

6th  Av e

73
 1

/2
 S

t

Ind
ia

na
 A

v e

No
r th

 S
ho

re 
Dr

76
th

 S
t

2nd Av e

Aylworth  Ave

La
gr

an
ge

 S
t

8th  Av e

Erie  St

Pa
rk  

A v
e

Hur on S t

Elkenburg St

Green St

Lee S t

Ch
er

ry 
S t

Water  St

Phi ll ips S t

Oak S t

Br
oa

dw
ay

 S
t

Superior  St

Mich igan Av e

Blu
e S

tar
 M

em
 Hwy

Clinton S t

CR 384

N 
Ba

ile
y A

v e

Monroe S t

Black 
Rive

r  S
t

Ve
ter

an
s  

Bl
vd

Ly on S t

11th A ve

Pe
ar

l S
t

Van B uren St

Lov ejoy Av e

10th Av e

Ke
nt

uc
ky

 A
v e

South Hav en St

Broc kway  A ve

Ba
ile

y A
ve

St
iev

e 
Dr

Dunk ley  A ve

Ha
ze

l S
t

Edgell  St

Wi ls on S t

Dyck m an Av e

Pr
es

er
ve

 D
r

Fru it S t

E Wel ls  St

Fr
an

cis
 S

t

C i
de

r C
t

Me
ad

ow
 D

r

Jo
ne

s A
v e

Wi ll iam s S t

Rav in ia  Dr

Conger S t

Cham bers S t

Eagle S t

Hu
bb

ar
d 

S t

Dow Ln

S I
 19

6/P
ho

en
ix

South Hav en Pl

S 
Ba

ile
y  A

ve

Phoenix /N  I 196

Lam bert Dr

Lu
nd

y L
n

Abe ll  A ve

Wells S t

Faye Ct

Hav en Dr

Phoenix /S  I 196

Cable A ve

Third  S t

St
 Jo

se
ph

 S
t

Private Dr

Ce
cil

ia 
Dr

Elm Ct

Dewey  Ln

Beacon Ct

Webster Av e

Beaver Ct

Basel ine Rd
La

ke
 S h

ore
 D

r

Le
na

 D
r

Quaker S t

Spencer Av e

Delaware Ct

Grand Blvd

Chippewa Ct

Apache Ct

Sunset Dr

Stream wood Dr

Ra
vin

e 
Ln

Car twright Av e

Sc
ho

ol
 S

t

Cl
ar

ke
 P

l

Woodm an S t

Nor th S t

An
ch

or
 D

r

Seawall  Ct

Wi llo
w A ve

Pr
os

pe
c t

 S
t

Itz
en

 C
t

Har bor  View Dr

Aver y S t

Hum phrey S t

Sp
rin

g H
ill 

Ln
Pine S t

Arbor Ct

Ch
er

ry 
Ct

Cas s S t

Elm P l

As hley Ln

Black River  R d

Oak Way

South St

Gabrie l  Dr

Jordyn Ln

Lak e Ct

Sheridan Rd

Alder  Ln

Kass ian Ct

Beech Av e

Al
len

 C
t

W
es

t S
t

Ev er ett P ark  W
ay

Br
ad

le
y A

ve

Wi llow Ct

Ho
ga

ns
 A

lle
y

12 th  Av e

Private Dr
Cham bers S t

Basel ine Rd

Pr
os

pe
c t

 S
t

Wi ls on S t

Prospec t St

Private Dr

Hu
bb

ar
d 

S t

Base l ine Rd

6th Av e6th Av e

Private Dr

Edgell  St

Superior  St

2nd Av e

Superior  St

Br
oa

dw
ay

 S
t

St
 Jo

s e
ph

 S
t

Ba
i le

y A
v e

8th  Av e

Basel ine Rd

10th Av e

Fru it S t

Private Dr

Basel ine RdS 
I 1

96
N 

I 1
96

72
nd

 S
t

Bl
ue

 S
ta

r H
wy

No
r th

 S
ho

re 
Dr

Mi tchell  Ct

Washington St

Lin
co

ln 
A v

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

Adam s Av

Basel ine Rd

Bl
ue

 S
ta

r H
wy

Lake
Michigan

µ

Turbine Categories
1. Under 40'
2. 40' to 200' (PC)
3. 40' to 200' (PC) & up to 400' (CC)

10/11/2013

Wind Generator
Height Limits

City of South Haven, MI

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 100 of 104



 

Planning commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6C 

B-3 Waterfront Business Zone 
Discussion 

City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information:  
 
At the October planning commission meeting, staff was asked to explore possible amendments 
to the B-3 Waterfront Business zoning district. Of primary concern was the omission of single 
family homes in the permitted uses in the district and the possibility of adding the commercial 
uses along Williams Street (now B-3) to the CBD Central Business District zone. 
 
On October 10 and 17, a subcommittee of Dave Paull, Larry Heinig and Terri Webb toured the 
B-3 zoned properties along with staff. We considered the effect of adding single family homes to 
the district and the effect of the CBD rezoning.  
 
It was found that there are scattered areas in the B-3 zone where single family homes now exist 
(as nonconforming uses) and some small parcels that are currently vacant that could 
accommodate a single family residence but likely not the uses currently permitted by right in the 
B-3 zone. The subcommittee concluded that single family homes should be added to the 
permitted uses list in the B-3 zone. 
 
The subcommittee also considered the rezoning of the commercial properties along Williams 
Street and determined the properties that are currently in commercial use should be rezoned to 
CBD. The marina properties at either end of Williams are suited to the B-3 zone and should 
remain zoned as they are.  
 
One concern with the rezoning is the building height allowed in the CBD. In the B-3 zone, 
buildings may be as high as 35 feet or 2.5 stories. (A half story is defined as being located 
between the eave and roof peak.) In the CBD, buildings may be 45 feet or 3.5 stories. It is 
unlikely the city will want 45 foot buildings along the riverfront as could occur with CBD zoning. 
A possible solution to this could be to rezone the properties to CBD but attach a height 
restricting overlay zone to the Williams Street properties.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
If the planning commission desires to continue with this process, staff will move forward with 
draft text and zoning map to be reviewed at the next meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
 
B-3 Waterfront Business zoning area 
Proposed map amendment 
 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 101 of 104



 

Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 102 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 103 of 104



November 7, 2013 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 104 of 104


	11-07-2013 Agenda Page
	10-03-2013 Planning Minutes draft
	Minutes pg. 2
	Minutes pg. 3
	Minutes pg. 4
	Minutes pg. 5

	#6A.. Pump Track Public Hearing - Staff Report
	Special Use Permit Application
	Applicant's Narrative
	Location Map 
	Site Plan
	Rendering Looking East
	Rendering Looking West

	#6B. Draft Wind Turbine Generator Ordinance
	#6B. Draft Wind Turbine Generator Ordinance Staff Report
	Staff Report Page 2
	Chronology of Draft Wind Turbine Generator Ordinance
	Chron. pg. 2
	A. Planning Comm. Minutes 08-09-2009 to 04-01-2010
	B. Staff Transmittal to City Council 05-03-2010
	C. Planning Comm. Minutes 07-01-2010
	D. Staff Transmittal to City Council 08-02-2010 - Draft Text & Height Maximum Map
	E. Joint Workshop Minutes, Planning Comm. & City Council 09-13-2010
	F. Planning Comm. Minutes 11-04-2010

	Wind Generator Height Limits Map 


	#6C. B-3 Zone - Staff Report & Maps
	Staff Report pg. 2
	B-3 Waterfront Business Zoning Area
	Proposed Map Amendment





